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	RFA NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202211187 First 4 ME Early Care and Education Program Pilot Sites Grant Funding Opportunity

	RFA ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Child and Family Services

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS ROUND #2 DUE DATE:
	March 27, 2023, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	AMENDMENT AND QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ROUND #2 ISSUED:
	March 31, 2023

	APPLICATION DUE DATE:
	April 10, 2023, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	APPLICATIONS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov

	Unless specifically addressed below, all other provisions and clauses of the RFA remain unchanged.

	DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES IN RFA:

1. Part I, E. Contract Terms is revised.
2. First 4 ME Program Overview is revised.
3. First 4 ME Program Goals is revised

	REVISED LANGUAGE IN RFA:

1. Part I, E. Contract Terms – the term of the anticipated contracts is replaced with:

The Department anticipates issuing awards for a contract period beginning as early as July 2023 and ending December 2024, with the possibility of a one (1) year renewal, if approved by the Department.  Contract periods may vary based on the time each application is received and scored by the Department and the Department’s ability to fully execute each contract.

2. First 4 ME Program Overview document is replaced in entirety:



3. First 4 ME Program Goals document is replaced in entirety:

 



Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.

	[bookmark: _Hlk48905851]1
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Can program incentives be related to the following:
a. Classroom/site repairs and/or maintenance (improve health & safety of location)?
b. Enhance quality programming (curriculum, supplies)?
c. Pay for further education / training of staff?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Program funds may not be utilized for the purchase or improvement of land, or for the purchase, construction, or permanent improvement of any building or facility. However, funds may be utilized for minor remodeling and for upgrading child care facilities to ensure that providers meet State and local child care standards, including applicable health and safety requirements, as approved by the Department.
b. Funds may be used to enhance quality programming embedded into daily activities and programming including curriculum and supplies.
c. Program funds may be used for further education / training of staff including school aged (i.e., shared professional development with School Administrative Unit’s early childhood educators).



	2
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Will answers be given as they are asked, or do we have to wait until the Round #2 closes to get our answer?

	
	Answer

	
	Round #1 questions are available at the Division for Procurement Services, Grant RFPs and RFAs webpage under RFA 202211187 Q&A Summary #1 Revised.  Round #2 questions will be responded to collectively and posted at the Division of Procurement Services, Grant RFPs and RFAs webpage no later than seven (7) calendar days prior to the applications due date.



	3
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Would this RFA consider a regional approach?  

	
	Answer

	
	No, organizations under a parent umbrella must submit an individual application and budget as the Community Contractor within their unique community.  Each application will be scored independently as outlined in the RFA. 



	4
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Our city has a new cooperative designation for a newly licensed, culturally sensitive, child care program and would like to be part of First4ME. This child care program is made up of three (3) separately licensed providers under one "roof.” Are these licensed providers considered three (3) Community Providers?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, so long as the three (3) Child Care Providers have entered into a contract with the Community Contractor to provide services as part of the Project.  The Community Contractor must submit Letters of Interest from each Community Provider they intend to have participate in the Project. 



	5
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Can child care programs currently working on getting licensed be considered in our planning for Year 2?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, child care programs currently working on getting licensed will be considered in year two (Y2) and/or three (Y3).  The three (3) year budget and action plan must reflect the additional proposed providers in Y2 and/or Y3) if applicable to the catchment area.  Child Care Providers must be licensed in order to participate in the Project. 



	6
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Should the Budget for Year 1 just go from May-December 2022?

	
	Answer

	
	No, Applicants must submit a budget for a thirty-six (36) months period. The Budget Form allows for Applicants to provide a budget breakdown for each year (12 month period).



	7
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	a. Will the state be paying for the Teaching Strategy Gold training and portfolios? 
b. If so, will it be on-line? 
c. How many hours will it be?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes.
b. Yes.
c. Training will be specific to the tool.  The Department will work with the awarded Applicant on timeline, expectations, and training schedule for required tools. 



	8
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	a. Will the Department be providing ASQ training on-line? 
b. If so, how many hours will it be?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes.
b. Training will be specific to the tool.  The Department will work with the awarded Applicant on timeline, expectations, and training schedule for required tools.



	[bookmark: _Hlk131056165]9
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Will the Department be developing “climate surveys” for families and providers, or do those need to be developed by the Pilot Site?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will collaborate with its evaluation partners for climate survey development and creation and consult with Project sites for survey delivery.  



	10
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Objective 2B on the first Program Goals page, does not match Objective 2B on page 3. Is the one on page 3 the one we should use?

	
	Answer

	
	Please use Objective 2B listed on page 3: “Provide intensive support to child care providers as a vital presence in the community and raise quality across the mixed delivery system of care to increase family choice.”



	11
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	When will the pilot sites be chosen?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department anticipates notification of conditional awards to be issued early to mid-May 2023.  



	12
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	If a good candidate for the Community Coach applies who does not have a bachelor’s degree, but has some college in ECE and Human Services and lots of relevant experience, can they be considered?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes. 



	13
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Will there be standard partnership agreements provided as reference in Appendix C, Year 1, Number 2? 

	
	Answer

	
	The Department will provide onboarding resource documents to awarded Applicants. 



	14
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Will there be a required statewide Kindergarten Entry Assessment (KEA) Tool to be implemented by grant recipient? 

	
	Answer

	
	There will be a universal tool used across all Project sites for kindergarten entry as part of this pilot.  Training will be provided by the Department. 



	15
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Can local coalitions add additional eligibility requirements for student participants based on community need?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes. However, the pilot shall prioritize children and families having experienced or experiencing hardship (At Risk).  Inclusive practices are highly encouraged. 



	16
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Can SAUs who are licensed as child care providers for before and after care participate as child care programs in the First 4 ME pilot program?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.  However, the eligible Participants in the before and after school program must include any child ages birth to five (5) not yet enrolled in kindergarten.



	17
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	a. Is CLASS required of all child care program participants? 
b. Are family childcare programs expected to participate in CLASS? 
c. If so, how? (Our understanding is that it is not designed for family child care settings.)

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes.
b. Yes.
c. The Department will work with the awarded Applicants on how to utilize CLASS based on the specific child care programming. 



	18
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Is Teaching Strategies Gold required of all child care program participants? 

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.



	19
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Is there a specific KEA required of participants? 

	
	Answer

	
	Yes. The KEA tool will be conducted through teaching strategies.  Training will be provided by the Department to Project sites.  Applicants do not need to include funding for KEA training in the Project budget. 



	20
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	a. Is the state providing the KEA? 
b. Will technical assistance be included? 
c. What will the KEA implementation requirements for pilot sites include, staffing, etc.?

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes. 
b. Yes.
c. Kindergarten Entry Assessment training will be provided. Funding does not need to be included in the site budgets.  Kindergarten Entry will be conducted for First4ME participants at the end of care with child care providers. Collaboration with local SAU’s is necessary for comparison.  



	21
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	Is there a specific developmental screening tool required of participants?

	
	Answer

	
	The screening tool that will be used in the pilot Project is the Ages & Stages, third edition (ASQ-3) and Ages & Stages Social Emotional, second edition (ASQ SE-2).  Training will be provided for ASQ-online.  



	22
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What defines "intentional transition activities"?

	
	Answer

	
	Intentional transition activities include any system adjustments or activities directly related to the transition of children into the school setting up to twelve (12) months prior to the transition and three (3) month post transition.  Intentional transition activities may include but are not limited to: field trips or visitations by future or previous teachers, family nights, portfolio construction and review, child planning meetings, communication pathways, enrollment systems, family education and outreach, open houses or special events.  Considerations shall be given to scheduled transitions such as Pre-K or K enrollment, as well as unscheduled transitions such as families that move into the area, transition, homeless, or specific placement for system readiness. 



	23
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	What defines "transition plan"?

	
	Answer

	
	Transition plans are documented plans that address system adjustments or activities directly related to the intentional transition of children into the school setting up to twelve (12) months prior to the transition and three (3) month post transition. The goal of the transition team is to identify current practice, enhance communication and intentional transitions for children and families for scheduled transitions such as Pre-K or K enrollment, as well as unscheduled transitions such as families that move into the area, transition, homeless or specific placement for system readiness.  Considerations shall be made to individual child transitions and broader systemic transition plans and activities.  
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First4ME
Early Care and Education Program


Program Overview


Office of Child and Family Services


Maine Department of Health and Human Services







❑ A two generation, community collaborative approach to a coordinated birth to kindergarten-
entry program providing quality early care to support a child’s school success through child 
care providers (CCP).


❑ First4ME was included in LD 1712 “An Act to Support Children’s Healthy Development 
and School Success.” that looks to improve a child’s social, emotional, educational, and 
health outcomes by providing comprehensive support and education for families through 
CCPs. Help Me Grow shares this legislation.


❑ The program will provide intensive support to the CCPs, SAUs, the family and the child 
with a focus on families that have or are experiencing hardship (“at risk”)


❑ It will also look to highlight the benefits of an efficient system of support and resources for 
all stakeholders and how high-quality child care can support a strong workforce in the short 
and long term.


❑ The Department will procure third party evaluation of the implementation sites during the 
pilot period. Evaluation of child, family, provider, and community data will be collected to 
inform further program decisions and adjustments.


Maine Department of Health and Human Services 2


What is First4ME?



http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/bills/getPDF.asp?paper=SP0533&item=5&snum=130





Action Plan: An action plan based upon the needs assessment that states objectives, goals and intended outcomes and 
responds to the needs of the community using the available resources and incorporating the project components.


Child Care Provider (CCP): A licensed and in good standing childcare center orfamily childcare provider that 
provides at least 48 weeks per year, five (5) days per week excluding stat holidays, available 10 hours per day and 
with up to 10 days of staff training orhome visiting services, including group socialization activities that include a 
child and a child’s parent/guardian/authorized caregiver for at least 48 weeks per year.


Community: The participant (child and family), and children not within the control group who receives care at a 
program site, child care providers, and stakeholders of the First4ME Early Care and Education program. 


Community at Large: The community that a program site resides in.  Members of the community at large may not 
have any tie to the participants, school administrative units (SAUs), or child care providers (CCPs) being served by 
this program


Community Coach: The individual point of contact for the pilot site and the coordinator of efforts between the 
coalition and stakeholders to ensure progress and meeting of objectives, hired or contracted by the community 
contractor.


Maine Department of Health and Human Services 3


Key Terms







Community Coalition: A community-based group of stakeholders who support the providers, participants and their 
families.  It must include the providers, community contractor and local school administrative unit (SAU).  It is 
encouraged to have a robust and representative group


Community Contractor: A Non-profit or community action program (501c3) that is the applicant for each pilot site 
and lead member/coordinator for the community coalition.  The community contractor will hire or contract for all 
services for the First4ME Program including community coach Community: The participant (child and family), and 
children not within the control group who receives care at a program site, child care providers, and stakeholders of 
the First4ME Early Care and Education program. 


Early Care and Education (ECE): Related to First4ME, specifically encompasses services that are developmental 
and educational in nature for children under the age of 6 not yet enrolled in kindergarten*.  
*The age range referenced within the ECE field can vary from prenatal- age 3,5,8 or even 10 (3rd grade) depending on audience, focus or program.


Implementation Sites: Applicants (referred to as community contractors in LD1712) for pilot sites are non-profit 
organizations who determine the area of coverage. A “site” may have several participating child care providers and 
SAUs within the identified community. Referred to as “Pilot project sites” in RFA
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Key Terms







Individuals experiencing hardship:  Commonly referred to as “At Risk”  Related to First4ME, the child (participant) 


or a family member within the home with one or more of the following: economically disadvantaged (not exceeding 


185% of Federal poverty level), child welfare involvement or past involvement, in foster care, homeless, exposed to 


substance use disorder, identified as special needs, a physical or mental disability, a person with limited English 


proficiency. 


Evaluation: Data-informed results regarding programmatic and cost benefits, cost analysis and measurement of 


outcomes for the program.


Mixed Delivery System: Offers parental/caregiver choice among various options for early care and education 


programming.    


Needs Assessment: An assessment evaluating data on and the demographics of the community of the community 


coalition under paragraph A to determine the needs of the population of eligible persons in the community regarding 


care, health care and education, the resources available in the community to address those needs and the ability of the 


project to address those needs using the project components


Maine Department of Health and Human Services 5


Key Terms







EducareLearning Network


The national Educare network of birth-to-five schools advances quality early learning through partnership and innovation 
around practice, policy and research so every child can thrive. The vision is that every family has equitable access to quality 
early care and education in their community, promoting positive outcomes for generations to come. Educare incorporates 
four essential practices: Data Utilization, Embedded Professional Development, High-Quality Teaching Practices, and 
Intensive Family Engagement.


Elevate Maine/Somerset


The five-year demonstration model through KVCAP/Educare Beyond the Walls in Somerset County, Maine highlighted 
positive indicators to success when a community collaborative model is in place for children and families.


First10 Community Schools 


Three pillars: Collaborate to improve teaching and learning, Coordinate comprehensive services for children and families 
and partner with families in culturally responsive ways.


Head Start/Early Head Start


Infuses programming elements that concentrates on the unique needs of economically disadvantaged families including 
barrier identification and solution focused approaches, offering comprehensive services through various early care and 
education settings and options. 


Maine Department of Health and Human Services 6


First4ME Influencers
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Multidimensional approach to maximize impact







✓ Child : A child enrolled in the pilot site childcare setting birth to age six (not yet 
enrolled in kindergarten) *Outcome measurement will occur for both “at risk:” 
participants and CCP enrolled participants


✓ Family: The parent/ legal guardian / authorized caregiver and all living in the 
household of the child who are support by the income of named individual and 
related by blood or marriage.


✓ Provider (CCP): Licensed Child Care Facility, Family Child Care setting or
home visiting service as defined in section 8301-A, subsection 1-A, paragraph A.


✓ Local School Administrative Units (SAUs): a state-approved unit of school 
administration, composed of one or more municipalities which must provide 
public education to all public-school students in the district specifically serving 
grades pre-kindergarten / kindergarten


Maine Department of Health and Human Services 8


Key First4ME participants



http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/22/title22sec8301-a.html





❑ Early Care and Education Settings: 


✓ Support to increase and sustain high quality of care, educational experience and alignment in order to promote a smooth 
transition to kindergarten from the mixed delivery system.


✓ Support to childcare providers through community coaches and early elementary educators through SAUs 
partnerships.


✓ Early screening and on-going assessments to inform goal setting and identifying targeted supports and/or services that 
may be necessary.


❑ Family Engagement & Stabilization: 


✓ Including parent or caregivers in communication, decision making and transitions to build trust and strengthen 
relationships


✓ Provide support for family goal setting to strengthen community work force


❑ Kindergarten Success (Transition): 


✓ Intentional collaborative efforts between early care and education settings, early elementary school settings and 
communities


✓ Programming and alignment for increased school success and increased communication between the mixed delivery 
system through Kindergarten entry. Transition points may be at PreK or K depending on the community


Maine Department of Health and Human Services 9


Focus Areas







▪ A member of an economically disadvantaged family


▪ A recipient or former recipient of services under the child 
protection or child welfare system 


▪ Foster care


▪ Homeless


▪ A member of a family exposed to substance use disorder


▪ Identified as having special needs


▪ Identified as having a physical or mental disability 


▪ Identified as having limited English proficiency.


Maine Department of Health and Human Services 10


“At Risk” defined by LD1712
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First4ME Program Goals


GOAL 3: Develop a coordinated system of support both statewide and local for providers, schools  and families


GOAL 4: Strengthen the consistent continuity of care for Maine families birth to school aged
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Anticipated Benefits
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• Increased health and    


developmental outcomes 


through routine screening and 


early targeted supports. 11


• Strengthened skill development 


across all domains through child 


care settings through 


kindergarten entry


• Reinforcement of positive adult 


relationships and safe, 


consistent environment for 


increased capacity for learning 


through strong home / childcare 


connection
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• Barrier identification and 
solution focused problem 
solving 8


• Education and support for 
personal growth, 
stabilization and sustained 
satisfaction


• Engagement and transition 
support for family and 
child to promote positive 
school experience


• Increase opportunity to 
strengthen workforce with 
caregivers obtaining high 
quality, consistent care
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• Improved quality rating 
scores for providers 12


• Support efforts towards 
accreditation


• Kindergarten transition teams 
to support a positive 
transition to a Pre-K / K 
setting from the mixed 
delivery system


• Intensive supports delivered 
through a community coach


• Recruit, prepare and retain 
high quality staff for  early 
childhood care and education  
1







Office of Child & Family Services


Community Contractor


Coalition member
Community Coach


Lead Coalition Member 
Representation from 


community contractor


Coalition Member:
Administrator or Leadership 
designee from  local school 
administrative unit (SAU)


Coalition Member:
Childcare Provider(s)


Robust Coalition Membership:
Representation of at least one (1) 
of the following when available 


in a community *


A  (501c3) and the applicant for the pilot.
Lead coordinator on community coalition* 


• Individual who provides 
intensive provider and 
participant supports


• Hired / Contracted by 
community contractor


Mental Healthcare Provider


Parent, Guardian or 
Caregiver 


Business  Community 


Elementary School Teacher  
Adult Education Representative 


Library or local literacy 
program


Local government or judicial 
staff member


CTE or Higher Education 
specializing in ECE


Early Childcare & Education 


Workforce development


Prevention Services 


Social Service Organizations 


Civic Organizations


Coalition members must 
be located or operate 
within the pilot 
community


First4ME Pilot Project  Sites: Key Roles 


Provides funding based on three-year budget 
and action plan submitted, supports quality 
assurance & improvement


Health care provider Community at large member


*This chart represents minimum membership 
requirement.  The department encouraged applicants to 
have robust and representative membership.  


Law enforcement or other first 
responder


Other community specific  
representative 







1. State of Maine Strategic Plan for Meeting the Needs of Vulnerable Children Birth to Age 5 and Their Families 
https://www.maine.gov/doe/sites/maine.gov.doe/files/2021-03/Maine%20B-
5%20Strategic%20Plan%20Report%2011.2020%20.pdf


2. Bipartisan Policy Center                                                                                                     
https://bipartisanpolicy.org/policy-area/early-childhood/


3. Zero to Three                                                                                                                
https://www.zerotothree.org/resources/series/zero-to-three-journal


4. Maine’s Early Learning and Development Standards Ages 3 to Kindergarten                                                      
https://www.maine.gov/doe/sites/maine.gov.doe/files/inline-files/Maine-ELDS_0.pdf


5. Infant and Toddler Early Learning Development Standards                                                                      
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/sites/maine.gov.dhhs/files/inline-files/Infant%20and%20Toddler%20MELDS_2021.pdf


6. Elevate Maine/Somerset                                                                                                       
https://cdn.branchcms.com/8oyQKqMEPL-1031/docs/Elevate-Maine-Somerset-Report-FINAL.pdf


7. Education Indicators for Maine, 2017, Educate Maine 
https://educationindicators.me/


8. National Head Start Association Facts & Impacts                                                                              
https://nhsa.org/resource/facts-and-impacts/


References
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9. Educare Learning Network
https://www.educareschools.org/our-approach/educare-model/


10. Maine Children’s Alliance Kids Count Data Book                                                                    
https://mainechildrensalliance.org/site/assets/files/1825/2021_kidscount_db_final.pdf


11. American Academy of Pediatrics Recommendations for preventive pediatric health care                                
https://downloads.aap.org/AAP/PDF/periodicity_schedule.pdf


12. Maine’s Quality Improvement System (QRIS) Rising Stars for ME
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/ocfs/support-for-families/child-care/qris


13. Maine Children’s Cabinet Plan for Young Children                                                                                   
https://www.maine.gov/future/sites/maine.gov.future/files/inline-files/CCYoungChildrenPlan.pdf


14. Maine Economic Development Strategy 2020-2029                                                                                   
https://www.maine.gov/decd/sites/maine.gov.decd/files/inline-files/DECD_120919_sm.pdf


15. First10 Communities
https://first10.org/why-first-10/


16. Maine Department of Education Whole Student Approach 
https://www.maine.gov/doe/learning/II/wholestudent


17. Childcare Plan for Maine 2021
https://www.maine.gov/dhhs/sites/maine.gov.dhhs/files/inline-files/FINAL%20Child%20Care%20Plan%20for%20Maine.pdf


References Continued
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Objective 1A 


Strengthen the alignment from 


early learning environments and 


care to the K-12 education 


setting for children to aid in a 


successful transition to school 


aged learning 


Objective 1B 


 Support providers in delivering developmentally 


appropriate instruction in all domains of 


development aligned with I/T MELDS, MELDS 


and Maine learning standards to support the 


trajectory of life-long learning 


 


Objective 1C 


  Support Children and 


families in completing         


age-appropriate screenings 


and assessments to meet their 


individual needs 


GOAL 1: Increase successful kindergarten transitions for children regardless of risk factors 


Objective 2A 


 Identify each provider’s individual, 


staff, and business goals to support a 


focused action plan to increase or 


sustain quality. 


Objective 2B 


Provide intensive support to child care 


providers as a vital presence in the 


community and raise quality across the 


mixed delivery system of care to 


increase family choice.” 


Objective 2C 


Close the staffing gap for 


participating providers and retain 


high quality and trained staff 


 


GOAL 2: Increase sustained, high quality child care and early childhood education through supports to providers 


Objective 3A 


 Identify community level 


supports, programs and targeted 


solutions for barrier identification 


for at risk families 


 


Objective 3B 


Use of a relationship-first technical assistance 


model to support providers, families and 


children get connected to appropriate services, 


programs, and education necessary for goal 


obtainment.   


 


GOAL 3: Develop a coordinated system of support both statewide and local for providers and families 


Objective 3C  


Connect families and providers 


with statewide systems 


through intensive support by 


community coach role 


 


Objective 4A  


Maintain consistent participant 


enrollment that meets the needs of 


each individual child and family  


 


Objective 4B  


Support families on a case by case to 


minimize disruption to childcare 


setting 


 


GOAL 4: Strengthen the consistent continuum of care for families birth to school aged 
 


Objective 4C 


Support providers in interventions, 


referrals, and family communication 


to enhance collaborative, child-


centered decisions  


 







Program Goals, Objectives and Outcomes 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


GOAL 1 


 Increase Kindergarten readiness for all Maine children regardless of risk factors 


Objective 1A 


 Strengthen the alignment from 


early learning environments and 


care to the K-12 education setting 


for children to aid in a successful 


transition to school aged learning 


Objective 1B 


 Support providers in delivering developmentally 


appropriate instruction in all domains of 


development aligned with I/T MELDs, MELDS 


and Maine learning standards to support the 


trajectory of life-long learning 


 


Objective 1C 


  Support Children and 


families in completing    


age-appropriate screenings 


and assessments to meet 


their individual needs 


1A Outcomes: 


▪ Develop a collaborative 


community transition plan to 


kindergarten for each child 


entering kindergarten with 


providers and school 


administration units. 


 


▪ Cohesive use of observation 


tools, assessments, and 


screenings for increased 


positive learning 


environments, strengthened 


relationship building across 


delivery models. 


 


▪ Increase information sharing 


and program alignment 


between childcare providers 


and elementary schools in the 


community (cross walk 


standards, visiting each 


other’s learning environments, 


participating in joint 


professional development 


opportunities on social 


emotional learning, child 


development, early math and 


literacy) 


1B Outcomes: 


▪  Integration of evidence-based, 


standard aligned curriculum 


academic, social, and emotional 


domains to support whole child 


learning birth to kindergarten 


entry 


 


▪ Pilot a kindergarten entry 


assessment in each 


participating elementary school 


 


▪ Obtain end of kindergarten 


benchmark data for monitoring 


of sustained readiness and 


success 


 


 


1C Outcomes: 


▪ Use of Ages and Stages / Ages 


and Stages Social Emotional 


Screener to inform early 


intervention practices 


 


▪ Utilization of early and 


ongoing assessment and 


screenings to inform services, 


programs, and support for 


each child to reach their full 


potential in the most 


consistent environments that 


meet their individual needs 


 


 


▪ Participant families meet 


timelines as defined on the 


Maine EPSDT for early 


intervention and support on a 


case-by-case basis. 


 


Each goal will be driven by three specific objectives with respective outcomes.  Pilot site applicants shall refer to 


these goals, objectives, and outcomes to ensure site goal alignment to overall First4ME program direction  







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Objective 2A 


 Identify each provider’s 


individual, staff and business 


goals in order to support a 


focused action plan to increase 


or sustain quality. 


Objective 2B 


 Provide intensive support to 


childcare providers as a vital presence 


in the community and raise quality 


across the mixed delivery system of 


care to increase family choice 


 


 


Objective 2C 


Close the staffing gap for 


participating providers and 


retain high quality and 


trained staff 


 


2A Outcomes: 


▪  Increase or sustain highest 


level QRIS scores for individual 


providers 


▪  Increase number of 


accredited childcare programs 


within the state 


▪ Progress on individual 


professional development 


plans for each provider staff 


for enhancement and 


retainment of highly qualified 


staff.  


 


2B Outcomes: 


▪  Obtain data related to how a 


consistent funding structure 


supports quality improvement 


through QRIS Scores, 


Professional Development Plans, 


Satisfaction and Climate surveys 


from families, providers, and 


provider staff.  


▪ Pilot a funding structure that 


stabilizes providers to maintain 


or raise quality of care 


▪ Build capacity to advocate with 


stakeholders for sustainability  


 


2C Outcomes: 


▪ Data obtained through 


provider / provider staff 


satisfaction and climate 


surveys that indicate 


positive work climate and 


staffing needs are being met 


▪ Obtain sustained and 


consistent employment at 


individual providers  


▪ Providers able to staff to 


program capacity to meet 


enrollment thresholds 


 


 Objective 3A 


 Identify community level 


supports, programs and targeted 


solutions for barrier 


identification for at risk families 


 


Objective 3B 


Use of a relationship-first technical 


assistance model to support providers, 


families and children get connected to 


appropriate services, programs and 


education necessary for goal obtainment.   


 


3A Outcomes: 


▪ Develop a coordinated and 


collaborative community coalition that 


meets the needs of the community at 


large through the support of a 


community contractor.  


 


▪ Communication efforts from 


community coalition to community at 


large to provide knowledge of the 


importance of early education on 


lifelong learning and work force 


stabilization.  


 


▪ Community coach collaboration with 


community contractor to support local 


systems for family and provider support 


 


3B Outcomes: 


▪ Progress of goals for provider 


and family being met through 


support of community coach(s) 


role 


 


▪ Development of individual 


family goals to mitigate risk, 


support progress and enhance of 


quality of life for participant 


families 


 


▪ Support provider – family 


communication for early 


intervention efforts and sustains 


communication to support 


school readiness from birth to 


kindergarten entry 


 


 


GOAL 2 


 Increase sustained, high quality childcare and early childhood education through supports to providers 


GOAL 3 


Develop a coordinated system of support both statewide and local for providers and families 


Objective 3C 


Connect families and providers 


with statewide systems 


through intensive support by 


community coach role 


 


3C Outcomes: 


▪  Provide support and referral on 


case-by-case basis to provider 


and family to support a strong 


communication pathway to 


facilitate trust and understanding  


 


▪  Utilize current and emerging 


resources in a timely fashion to 


meet the child and family’s 


individual goals and needs.  







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Objective 4A 


 Maintain consistent participant 


enrollment that meets the needs of 


each individual child and family  


 


Objective 4B 


 Support families on a case by case to 


minimize disruption to childcare 


setting 


 


4A Outcomes: 


▪ Through consultation and guidance from 


each family, identify the appropriate 


setting for each participant child and 


family through transition to 


kindergarten 


 


▪ Offering solutions from family guided 


needs for childcare and educational 


experiences that are child-centered and 


promote kindergarten readiness 


 


 


4B Outcomes: 


▪ Demonstrate systematic and 


coordinated efforts to maintain 


enrollment (if appropriate) based 


on the child and/or family’s needs 


and circumstances.  


 


GOAL 4 


Strengthen the consistent continuum of care for Maine families birth to school aged 


 


Success Indicators and Measurement Tools 


Child  Provider Family  


▪ Kindergarten entry assessment 
from participating SAUs 


▪ End of year kindergarten 
benchmarks 


▪ TS Gold 
▪ Evidence based Curriculums  
▪ ASQ & ASQ S/E  
▪ EPSDT timeframes for participant 


children 
▪ Expulsion Rates 
▪ Qualitative Data from families, 


providers, coalition, reported by 
site coaches and specialist 


▪ Reporting on individual site 
action plans 


▪ Evaluators reports 
▪ CDS local referral data 


▪ QRIS ratings 
▪ Number of Accredited 


childcare programs  
▪ Satisfaction Surveys  
▪ Climate Surveys  
▪ Staff data on hiring / retaining 
▪ Staff Exit interviews  
▪ Personal Development Plans 


for all childcare staff 
▪ Business Plan development 


and achievement for provider 
▪ CLASS  
▪ TS Gold  
▪ S/E Curriculum  
▪ Expulsion Rates 
▪ Qualitative Data from families, 


providers, coalition, reported 
by site coaches and specialist 


▪ Reporting on individual site 
action plans 


▪ Evaluators reports 
 


▪ Satisfaction Surveys  
▪ Climate Surveys  
▪ Personal Family Goal planning 
▪ Evidence based curriculums  
▪ ASQ & ASQ S/E  
▪ EPSDT timeframes for 


participant children 
▪ Expulsion Rates 
▪ Qualitative Data from families, 


providers, coalition, reported 
by site coaches and specialist 


▪ Responsive referral data 
▪ Reporting on individual site 


action plans 
▪ Evaluators reports 


 


 


Objective 4C 


Support providers in interventions, 


referrals and family communication 


to enhance collaborative, child-center 


decisions  


 


4C Outcomes: 


▪ System of interventions and supports 


for the provider to maintain child 


enrollment (if appropriate)  


 


▪ Increase early intervention efforts 


and timelines for participant children 


birth to age three to support the 


child’s individual needs for care and 


education 


 


▪ Identify a communication plan for all 


participant families that promotes 


two-way, collaborative 


communication  


 







Funding to each site will be determined by individual budget requests by the community contractor as the applicant. 


 Each budget shall be reflective of pilot site size.  Below are the required budget items for each applicant.   


Additional budget items may be added for consideration. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Office of Child & Family Services 


Universal Pilot Award 


Community Contractor 


 


Discretionary 


funds Participation 


Stipends 


Supplies and  


 Materials Staffing  


Enrollment 


Stipends 


Anchor 


Payments 


to providers  


Each site will be awarded funding to 


support the following: 


o Observation tools 


o Evidence Based Academic and 


social / emotional curriculums  


Each site shall 


determine a 


monthly 


anchor 


payment for 


each provider.   


The payments 


shall be 


consistent 


across types 


(center, family 


childcare and 


home visiting) 


however may 


be adjusted 


between types 


to account for 


dosage and 


operational 


differences.  


Each provider 


shall receive an 


enrollment 


stipend for each 


enrolled child 


participating 


within the 


First4ME 


program.  This 


should be based 


on rate not to 


exceed CSSP.  


Transition 


funding plans 


should be 


considered and 


budgeted for to 


account for 


possible lost 


enrollment, or 


adjustment to 


schedules. 


Budgeted for as 


needed costs to meet 


the First4ME program 


goals and objectives.  


The department will 


seek justification for 


amounts over $1,000 


per distribution or after 


three occurrences to 


the same provider.  


Examples of use of 


discretionary funds, 


not limited to: 


o Continuing 


Education 


o Emergency Funds 


o Pop up costs 


o Programming 


needs 


o Support for 


participation  


o Folding in new 


providers if 


opportunity arises 


o Shared PD costs 


with SAU 


partnerships 


 


Supplies and 


materials 


directly related 


to increased 


quality 


programming, 


parent 


engagement 


activities, 


community 


communication 


events or 


initiatives, 


kindergarten 


transition plans 


and events 


Funding for 


specific 


participation 


by families, 


local school 


administration 


units and/ or 


funds allocated 


to support 


events that 


would need 


additional staff 


or resources 


(such as 


kindergarten 


entry 


screenings or 


assessments) 


Each application 


shall fund at 


minimum one 


(1) Full time 


Community 


coach.   Each 


site’s approach 


to support staff 


will be 


dependent on 


each site’s size, 


scope and goals.  


Additional staff 


considerations 


may be for 


provider 


substitutes, 


home visitors or 


additional 


coaches.  This is 


not required 


and will be 


determined by 


the community 


contractor. 


Funding Structure  







Each applicant shall submit a three-year action plan to detail how the proposed budget will be executed and how each 


pilot site’s action plan will align with First4ME program goals.  The action plan shall focus efforts on layering of support, 


family engagement, provider support, early childcare / early childhood education, and community collaboration.  The 


action plan shall identify outcomes and timelines to support to progress monitoring and if needed, course correct.  


Action Plan 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Year One


Establish foundational relationship 
building, local and state support 
identification and obtain baseline 
participant data and participation.  


Year Two


Deepening community relationships, 
continued provider supports, execute 
alignment efforts to kindergarten, 
coaching and mentoring to progress 
along both site and program goals and 
objectives.


Year Three


Continued family, provider and 
community support, focused sustaibility 
efforts for model, and identify key 
learnings for program evolvement 







 


 


 


 


 


 


Visual One Page Descriptions to support partnerships with 


providers and SAUs 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


First4ME Early Care and Education Program 


School Administrative Unit (SAU) Partnership 


First4ME is a pilot model that focuses on a two generational, community-based coordinated system of support designed 


for at risk children and families through intensive supports to the mixed delivery system to support an aligned transition 


to school aged learning.  The overall goal is to increase every child’s school readiness, regardless of risk factors however 


that work begins sooner than kindergarten and requires all stakeholders to support one another.   


Please join us in this opportunity to learn and grow together for betterment for the children in our care and their families. 


Benefits for SAUs who participate in 


First4ME: 


o Community Support for transition 


efforts for school aged learning 


 


o Efforts focused on readiness 


efforts prior to enrollment  


 


 


o Resource supports for 


kindergarten transitions 


 


o Stronger community relations and 


important information shared 


prior to enrollment to aid in 


placement, decision making and 


interventions 


 


o Participation funding for activities 


or trainings deemed supportive to 


the alignment efforts 


 


o Cross Training and Professional 


development opportunities for 


early education staff  


 


o Technical assistance for Early 


educators to bridge the transition 


from childcare settings to school 


aged learning environments 


 


Participating SAUs agree to: 
 


o Work with First4ME staff related to 
information sharing efforts to 
measure, and monitor longitudinal 
impacts 


 
o Deliver a kindergarten entry 


assessment year two and year three 
of pilot participation 


 
o Administrative or leadership 


designee* active participation on 
the community coalition  


 
o Support alignment efforts for 


stronger health, academic, social 
and emotional outcomes for at risk 
children and their families 


 
o Embrace relationship first efforts to 


develop a positive family-school 
communication  
 


o Participate* on an early education 
transition team to develop a 
transition plan for children entering 
Pre-kindergarten or Kindergarten 


 
 
*Administrative leadership or leadership 
designee would satisfy participation agreement 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


First4ME Early Care and Education Program 


Provider Partnership 


o Multi-tiered financial Compensation  


- Monthly participation anchor payments  


- Enrollment Stipends 


- Support plans for program participant 


adjustments 


o Access to funding for specific provider needs: 


- Program enhancements 


- Professional Development 


- Efforts towards accreditation  


- Administrative Costs 


- Unforeseen costs related to health & safety 


- Maintenance or repair costs 


o Support for recruiting, training and sustaining high 


quality staff 


 


 


 


 


First4ME Staff will provide: 


o Technical Assistance through a collaborative 


partnership 


o  Two on site visits per month at minimum 


o Access to First4ME program specialist 


o Health and Development screenings for 


children 


o Support for coordination of parent education 


and engagement opportunities 


o Access to community resources  


o Support navigating state level resources 


o Barrier identification and support for solutions 


o Connection to a Professional Development 


Network  


o Support to provider as needed for specific 


circumstances related to child or family needs  


 


  


First4ME is a pilot model that focuses on a two generational, community-based 


coordinated system of support designed for at risk children and families through 


intensive supports to the providers as the delivery setting.  The overall goal is to 


increase every child’s school readiness, regardless of risk factors however that work 


begins sooner than kindergarten and requires all stakeholders to support one another.  


Please join us in this opportunity to learn and grow together for betterment for the 


children in our care and their families. 


o Technical Assistance / Mentoring / Coaching 


with a full-time community coach 


o Monthly scheduled visits 


o As needed supports from Community Coach 


and First4ME program specialist 


o Professional learning opportunities and 


networking with other providers locally and 


statewide 


o Access to support service staff related to 


student needs 


o Parent Engagement and Activity Funds 


o Support for research and evidence-based 


curriculum implementation 


o Support with behavior or intervention efforts 


 


 


 


Support for Childcare Settings who participate in First4ME: 


 


Participating Childcare providers agree to: 
o Have at minimum one annual consultation with 


their district coordinator 
o Maintain good standing with Maine’s Bureau of 


Licensing  
o Meet First4ME program requirements  
o Engage in a collaborative partnership with their 


community coach  
o Participate in comprehensive health and safety 


assessments   
o Maintain records such as attendance, observations, 


logs related to training and health/safety, 
curriculum plans, staff personnel records 


o Attend required professional development related 
to program  


o Actively participate on the Community Coalition  







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Document to support creation of pilot project site action plan 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 







Considerations for Planning for a First4ME Program Pilot Project Site 


The following guide is intended to support the development of a potential pilot site’s First4ME action 
plan.  First4ME is a comprehensive framework with several stakeholders at the core of each key 
element.  The pilot sites shall have overarching goals for continuity between sites; however, each 
individual site should consider their own demographic and cultural needs when planning.   


When making considerations for programming and activities that support the goals of the First4ME pilot 
site proposals a site action plan that is both community responsive and culturally sensitive should be 
prioritized.  (scope of work, not have all the answers) 


Overarching questions to consider 


Does the site action plan align with overarching First4ME goals and objectives? 
How will the funds be allocated in a fair, consistent way over the year?  How will budget management 
and pacing play a role?   
What is needed to support motivation, momentum or breaking down barriers for all participants? 
Does the purchase of supplies or equipment help with mitigating barriers to goal achievement? 
Does the pilot meet community needs in a responsive way? What role does the community at large 
play? 
How will you gauge progress and when to make adjustments or pivots? 
How will you keep relationship building and communication at the forefront of this pilot? 
What considerations will be made for different levels of engagement from families?  What offerings 
will be provided to all families, some families and specific families?   
Will there be a difference in programming for families that agree to being in the participant group? 
If applicable, how will concerns, hesitations or resistance be addressed in a consistent, respectful 
way? 


 


Key Definitions 


Abuse or Neglect As defined in 22 M.R.S.A. § 4002(1).    


Action Plan An action plan based upon the needs assessment that states objectives, 
goals and intended outcomes and responds to the needs of the 
community using the available resources and incorporating the project 
components 


Ages & Stages 
Questionnaire (ASQ-3)  


A developmental screening tool designed for use by early educators and 
health care professionals that is focuses on parent driven observation to 
create a snapshot needed to catch delays and celebrate milestones.  


Alignment   The range of policies and practices designed to put children from birth to 
kindergarten entry on a positive developmental pathway that takes what 
they have learned early in their development and builds on it through the 
early elementary grades. 


All Domains of 
Development 


Specific aspects of growth and change. The major domains of 
development are physical, cognitive, language, and social-emotional. 



http://legislature.maine.gov/legis/statutes/22/title22sec4002.html

https://agesandstages.com/

https://agesandstages.com/





Assessment Any formal or informal documented gathering of information to help 
inform programming or services needed.  Educational assessments can 
measure what information is retained from instruction or what possible 
barriers to learning are present.  Developmental Assessments can 
measure the specific delays or barriers and offer treatment 
recommendations. Assessments are helpful in making data driven 
decisions for programming, interventions and possible course correction 


Classroom Assessment 
Scoring System (CLASS) 


Classroom Assessment Scoring System® (CLASS), a quality improvement 
system for teaching, that measures classroom interactions for improved 
learning delivered by  Teachstone® 


Child(ren) A child under six (6) years of age who has not entered kindergarten. 


Child Care Provider A childcare center, family childcare provider, or home visitor services as 
defined section 8301-A within the participating in the Program. 


Coherence (cohesion)  Coherence refers to integration and interconnection between local and 
state systems in a way that mutually reinforces shared understanding and 
overall progress toward a clear vision and set of goals 


Community The participant (child and family), and children not within the control 
group who receives care at a Program site, Child Care Providers, and 
stakeholders of the First4ME Early Care and Education Pilot Program 
(Program).  


Community at Large The community that a Program site resides in.  Members of the 
Community at Large may not have any tie to the participants, school 
system, or Child Care Providers being served by this Program. 


Community Coach Central point of contact for each Program site hired by or contracted with 
the Community Contractor.  


Community Coalition  A varied membership of community members that represent 
stakeholders for a community-based support to families and Child Care 
Providers. 


Community Contractor Non-profit that is the applicant for each Program site and lead 
member/coordinator for the Community Coalition. 


Comprehensive, high-
quality early childcare and 
education 


Refers to a supportive, intergenerational, age-appropriate, research-
based interaction and teaching practices provided by a licensed provider 
of childcare under section 8301-A that focuses on all 


domains of learning, and includes embedded professional development, 
family engagement in a child's learning and progress toward family goals, 
using data to inform teaching practices and a holistic approach to a child's 
physical, mental and dental 


health. 



https://teachstone.com/

http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/22/title22sec8301-a.html

http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/22/title22sec8301-a.html





Control Group Children and their families that are considered eligible “at risk” 
participants whom consent to data sharing, participation in data 
collecting and progress monitoring for the First4ME Program This can 
include but is not limited to baseline data, interviews, access to 
educational and health records.  Privacy in reporting shall be strictly 
adhered to unless consent is provided. 


Data Facts, information, key learnings, and participant feedback all used to 
inform decision making.  


Demonstration Model  Elevate Maine/Somerset delivered by Kennebec Valley Community Action 
Program (KVCAP)/Educare Central Maine. 


Department Maine Department of Health and Human Services 


Early Learning 
Environment 


Any environment that has specific activities that focuses on development 
of skills and tools birth to early elementary years in order to promote 
lifelong learning. 


Economically 
Disadvantaged 


A family income not exceeding 185% of the federal poverty level as 
defined in section 3762, subsection 1, paragraph C. 


Eligible “At Risk” 
Participant 


A Child who meets the following eligibility requirements: 
1. Is receiving care in a facility licensed under section 8301-A; or 
2. Whose parent requests Home Visitor Services. 
 
The child must also be a member of one (1) the following subgroups:  


a) Economically Disadvantaged family; 
b) Recipient or former recipient of services under the child 


Protection or child welfare system of the State of Maine; 
c) In foster care; 
d) Homeless; 
e) A member of a family exposed to substance use disorder; 
f) Identified as having special needs; 
g) Identified as having a physical or mental disability; or  


Identified as having limited English proficiency. 
Embedded professional 
development 


Activities facilitated by a community coach to encourage rule-specific 
knowledge and skills to support responsive caregiving and 
developmentally appropriate teaching practices implemented for learning 
that is integrated into the work day, consists of assessing and finding 
solutions for authentic and immediate problems of practice as part of a 
cycle of continuous improvement and is grounded in day-to-day teaching 
practice designed to enhance a teacher's or caregiver's practices with the 
intent of improving children's social, emotional and cognitive 
development through tools and collaborative  



https://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/22/title22sec3762.html

http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/22/title22sec8301-a.html





Evaluation Data-informed results regarding programmatic and cost benefits, cost 
analysis and measurement of outcomes for the Program. 


Family A child, the child's parent or caregiver, and all people living in the 
household of the child who are supported by the income of the child's 
parent, and who is related to the child or child's parent by blood, 
marriage, or adoption. 


First4ME Early Care and 
Education Program 
(Program) 


A two generation, multidimensional framework for a proactive, 
coordinated birth to kindergarten-entry program providing quality early 
care to support a child’s school readiness utilizing up to five pilot project 
sites across the State of Maine 


Home  
Visitor Services 


Services between a home visitor and a parent that on the part of the 
home visitor are nurturing, responsive and intentional and that support 
the parent in the parent's role as the primary teacher of the parent's child 
and assist the parent in using the parent's home and the community as 
the child's learning environment. 


Incredible Years  The Incredible Years® is an evidence-based program for parents, children, 
and teachers that promotes their social, emotional, and academic 
competence.  


Kindergarten Entry 
Assessment (KEA)  


An evidenced-based screening that measures an individual child’s 
development across all domains to inform classroom instruction, 
curriculum planning, and professional development needs; to identify 
students in need of specialized supports or interventions and to provide a 
statewide snapshot of what children know when they enter kindergarten. 


Letter of Interest A letter from providers interested and willing to adhere to the 
requirements to participate in the First4ME Early Care and Education 
program.   


Letter of Support  A letter from at least one local (may be multiple) School Administrative 
Units 


Maine Roads to Quality 
Professional Development 
Network 


(MRTQ – PDN) 


Maine Roads to Quality (MRTQ) Professional Development Network 


Mandated Reporting Community Coaches are Mandated Reporters as professionals working 
with children and will be expected to abide by any and all requirements 
as set forth in 22 M.R.S.A. § 3477. 


Needs Assessment An assessment evaluating data on and the demographics of the 
community of the community coalition under paragraph A to determine 
the needs of the population of eligible persons in the community 
regarding care, health care and education, the resources available in the 



https://incredibleyears.com/programs/

http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/22/title22sec3477.html





community to address those needs and the ability of the project to 
address those needs using the project components 


Observation The process of gaining information by what was seen, heard, or noticed. 


OCFS Office of Child and Family Services 


Participant A Child who: 
1. Is receiving care in a facility licensed under section 8301-A; or 
2. Whose parent requests Home Visitor Services. 
 
Does not meet “at risk” requirements but agrees to collection of baseline 
data for project and benefits from programming 


Pilot Project Each Program site’s individual pilot project with unique action plan, three 
(3) year budget, goals, objectives, and outcomes as part of a larger 
program. 


RFP Request for Proposal 


School Administrative 
Units (SAUs) 


A subdivision of the public school system which is governed by a local 
board of education. It may be a city school administrative unit, a county 
school administrative unit, or a city county school administrative unit. 


Screening  An initial set of questions to get a snapshot or understanding of baseline 
status.  If there is concern within the results of a screening, an assessment 
may be in order.   


State State of Maine 


Sustainability Efforts in ensuring the supports are in place for First4ME to continue over 
time. Diverse financial support to maintain resources, building awareness 
to community at large of the positive impacts of coordinated and aligned 
early care and education for the long term outcomes for successful 
children, adults, families businesses and communities.  


Teaching Strategies Gold 
(TSG) 


The assessment model by Teaching Strategies follows widely used 
expectations for children from birth through third grade that enables a 
whole-child approach to assessment. 


Qualitative Data Collection  Data collection that can be arranged into categories based on physical 
traits, gender, colors or anything that does not have a number associated 
with it.  


Quantitative Data 
Collection  


Data collected that is relating to, or expressible in terms of quantity; or 
involving the measurement of quantity or amount 


 


 



http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/22/title22sec8301-a.html

https://teachingstrategies.com/

https://teachingstrategies.com/





Key Elements 


The seven components of this guide each contain five cross-cutting key elements with multiple 
questions for consideration to help identify strengths of current community resources and identify 
opportunities for growth.   


Layering of support:  First4ME looks to have a multidimensional support system for families 
participating at the pilot site. General questions to ask as you proceed: What are the supports currently 
available in the community? How do we measure the needs of the community? What could be improved 
upon? What are the gaps in resources and services for families and childcare providers in order to be 
fully engaged citizens within our community?   


Family Engagement: This is a cornerstone to all programming for First4ME and should be heavily 
considered during all planning.  Home is a child’s first teacher – and all other relationships are parallel to 
those at home.  The collaborative efforts of all stake holders should promote engagement on multiple 
levels.  The pace and depth of those efforts should be responsive to each individual families goals.  
Support and knowledge for the adults within the home is just as important as the child.  The right to 
choose what is best for the child’s overall development, health and wellness shall always reside within 
the parent or caregiver’s voice.   


Provider Supports:  The environment, staff and overall healthy climate of a childcare site is vital to long 
term, consistent success.  When planning activities, supports or initiatives to support families, 
collaboration with the lead staff at the childcare site is vital.  What is the scheduled meeting times to 
discuss implementation? What supports are in place for childcare staff to be trained or obtain higher 
levels of education? What connections does the provider already have in their community?  What 
barriers exist for the childcare site to improve its quality of care? How can the pilot support their 
efforts? 


Early Childcare / Early Childhood Education:  The need for stability and consistency of caregivers and 
environments continues to be at the heart of a child’s success.  This builds a child’s brain architecture to 
ensure they are ready to learn, manage adversity and contribute to their own healthy development.  
What are the overlapping systems that can be aligned? If there is not an ability for alignment, how can 
there be cohesion between the child’s early learning environments and  K-12 experience?  Who should 
be at the heart of these conversations and how can you measure success? 


Community Collaboration: The community coalition is a vital component of the First4ME pilot.   The 
community at large may not participate directly with the First4ME pilot participants; however they are 
part of the overall landscape of a given community.   The ability to wrap coordinated support and 
services around the providers and the families will be fundamental to the success.  How will the provider 
and families access support from the community at large? What benefits are there to membership of 
the community coalition? How does this coalition aid in strengthening the community at large? Who 
participates in the coalition and how can the efforts be communicated to the community at large? 


  







Assessment, Screening & Data Alignment 


Cross-Cutting Key Elements: Considerations: 
Layering of support • Are there contacts available to help families navigate the reasons for 


assessment, screenings and the importance of tracking growth and 
development?  How will it be presented in a way that is easy to 
understand for families, providers and community? 


• Is assessment and screening data reviewed in conjunction with other 
data points? 


• How will the site data be woven into the overall pilot data? Is the SAU 
involved in the overlaying of data sharing? 


• What agreements have been made with the SAU for K screening and 
End of K benchmarks? Further plans for monitoring? 


 
Family Engagement • What is the process to ensure children are getting their health / 


developmental screenings in a time appropriate way?   
• Are families aware of the kinds of assessments being administered to 


their children and the purpose of these assessments? 
• Are families given opportunity to review and ask questions about 


screenings and assessments? What environment is being provided for 
different levels of engagement or concerns? Who is doing which 
assessment? 


• If there are concerns with a child’s development, how are 
conversations broached with families? How are referrals approached 
in a sensitive, respectful way? 


Provider Supports • What knowledge does the staff have about data collection and 
review?  What support does this stakeholder need? 


• How are providers supported in sharing screening results and making 
referrals? Do the providers have access to available referral sources?  


• How will the provider observations be used to support learning and 
growth for the provider? Who will conduct these and how will it be 
shared to the provider? 


• Is there a screening and assessment schedule developed for each 
child?  Who does the screening and assessments?  Who has access to 
the data?  How will the data be used to inform decisions for the child 
and pilot? 


• Who should be part of these conversations?   
Early Childcare / Early 
Education  


• Are the assessments age and developmentally appropriate? 
• Do the assessments provide information that is relevant to decision 


making for intensifying or reducing supports as needed? 
• Do assessments across age and grade spans align to learning 


progressions and connect across those progressions to document 
children’s growth and inform instructional practice?  How can there be 
alignment from Early Childhood to K-12? 


• Are assessment procedures individualized to the child? 
Community Collaboration  • Are selected screenings and assessments culturally responsive to the 


population?  What findings will be shared with the community at large 
in what ways?  How can data help to inform sustainability efforts 


 







 Instructional Practice & Curriculum Alignment 


Cross-Cutting Key Elements: Considerations: 
Layering of support • What community members or coalition members can support 


learning at the childcare setting? Possible guest speaking or field 
trips for older children? How play or project-based learning to be 
infused into current instruction / enrichment? 


• What strategies are in place for children who show barriers to 
learning or how does the pilot build capacity for strategies? 


Family Engagement •     How will families be provided with information on programming 
and curriculum across all age spans? 


• Are families provided support to understand the programs and 
curriculum? 


• Are families invited to engage with the provider curriculum? 
• What parenting activities or programs help align learning at the 


childcare site? 
• Do families feel comfortable to ask clarifying questions about the 


curriculum? How will you know? 
 Provider Supports • What is being used for academic, social and emotional learning? Is 


it evidence based?  If not, how will the provider be supported in 
choosing a curriculum? What alignment can be made with a child’s 
early learning environment and the local K-12 system?  


• What is the timeline in getting staff trained on using the 
curriculum? What is already being used?  


• How will staff be supported in learning new curriculum? 
• How will new learning be incorporated into their current 


schedules? 
Early Childcare / Early Education  • Is the curriculum age and developmentally appropriate across the 


continuum of child development? 
• Is instructional programming comprehensive and supportive across 


all infant / toddler and preschool Early Learning Development 
Standards (MELDS) and Learning Results? 


• Is there a community wide Kindergarten transition approach with 
the ability to individualize plans for a specific child’s needs? 


• How do you connect early childhood and early elementary 
educators to build continuity? 


Community Collaboration  • Does the curriculum meet the needs children birth to K entry and 
beyond? 


• Is the curriculum being supported with community resources? 


 


  







Communication Alignment 


Cross-Cutting Key Elements: Considerations: 
Layering of support • Are all stakeholders (everyone who interacts with a child / family) 


involved in ongoing communication? 
• In general, is time held aside to allow for proper, uninterrupted 


communication? 
• What does the pathways of communication look for all stakeholders? 


Is the communication flow effective? Does everyone feel informed? 
Are there areas or aspects that can be increased?  


• Is communication accepted and given in a variety of methods? How is 
resistance or concerns addressed?  


• How is the community at large informed and updated about first4ME 
goals and outcomes?  


•  
Family Engagement • Are families provided information in a language/and or modality, that 


they can fully access? 
• Are families provided the resources to fully communicate their 


thoughts and feelings? 
• Are supporting resources related to all developmental domains 


available and communicated to families?  
• Are strengths and goals about children shared in a timely and 


strength-based manner? 
• Are families able to receive and send communication in ways that 


work easily for families? 
• Is the child involved in the communication when appropriate? 


Provider Supports • Is there support to help staff communicate with families?  
• Is the climate of each unique provider honored? 
• Do providers have the resources to communicate effectively with 


parents? (verbal, written / electronic) 
Early Childcare / Early 
Education  


• What communication happens between early learning environments 
and K-12 environments?  Is this an ongoing relationship? What would 
be needed to develop this relationship? 


• How would a kindergarten transition approach be strengthened by 
communication between schools and providers? 


• How will multiple SAUs be involved or communicated with  
• What other efforts are needed to align communication?  


Community Collaboration  • Is information shared with the community at large? 
• Is the community at large invited to be part of ongoing conversations 


related to first4ME efforts? 
•  Is the community asked to be part of the education of a child? What 


opportunities could be brought in by the community? 
 


  







Developing Capacity, Support & Sustainability  


Cross-cutting Key Elements Considerations 
Layering of support • Is there representation in the coalition from all relevant 


stakeholders to provide effective layering of support for the child, 
family and provider?   


•  Are there clear and consistent goals and objectives stated? 
• How will feedback and learnings be discussed and considered by 


the community coalition? When and how will this information 
drive course correction within the pilot site?  What will be the 
process to share this information with stakeholders and beyond to 
benefit the First4ME pilot as a whole  


• What opportunities are there for additional financial resources to   
maintain the programming? 


• What are the community needs as the children begin to cross into 
K-12 learning? 


• What collaborations can be made with the childcare setting and 
the SAU birth to 3rd grade to ensure alignment? 


Family Engagement • Are families invited to participate or share information? At what 
level? 


• Is there a consideration for timing, frequency and method of 
communication and family involvement that are inclusive of family 
needs and timings? 


• Are there systems that support family-initiated teams and 
decisions? 


• What process is in place for families that change settings?   
• What communication is needed for a warm hand off to the SAU? 
• What supports do families need in order to maintain enrollment at 


childcare setting? 
• Does this First4ME pilot support families entering, sustaining or 


advancing within the workforce?  
• Are there opportunities for families to become mentors or support 


other families? 
Provider Supports • Are providers aware of state resources and systems available to 


them? (i.e CCACFP, QRIS, CCSP, TEACH) 
• What resources are needed in order to maintain new 


responsibilities or changes in routine from this program?  
• What upfront agreements need to be in place in order for the 


program to run smoothly?   
• How can barriers be addressed? 
• What resources are needed to maintain levels of participation?  


Does the provider need resources (financial, time or staff) in order 
to maintain new systems, routines or activities? 


• What are the workforce needs? How can the first4ME pilot 
support this? 


 
Early Childcare / Early Education  • Are there team building opportunities across childcare, private 


preschool, and public-school educators? 







• How do you include all types of learning environments including 
Montessori, homeschool or charter school options? 


• • Are there times and processes that encourage communication 
across childcare, private preschool, public school? 


• What is needed for a success bridge to kindergarten? What 
collaboration or resources could be placed within the K-12 
environment from this program to maintain momentum and 
motivation?  


• How will the need for program adjustment be measures year to 
year?   


• How will new or more pressing needs that present be addressed? 
• How is early learning environments and experiences recognized as 


vital to the foundation for life-long learning and success? 
Community Collaboration  • Are outside organizations and community partners invited to 


participate in decision making and as active members of teams? 
• Are there opportunities for community members to access school 


resources and the school setting to enhance relationships and 
develop high levels of comfort for smooth transitions? (i.e., Play & 
Learn Groups, Community Groups, Student Organizations) 


• Is there a location in the community considered welcoming and 
open community hub? 


• Are there provider options that are responsive the community 
needs for care? If there is an unmet need is there a way to meet 
those? 


• How will new stakeholders be welcomed to the community?  
• How will the community at large be informed of the work in order 


to support sustainability?   
• How do you gauge the perception of early childhood education in 


the community at large?  How do inform and advocate for the 
importance of early childhood education to be widely recognized 
with the community at large? What is the importance of this 
investment beyond the direct participants? 


• What resources are needed and how can the community at large 
help?   


• What state or local supports are needed to move forward? 
• How will you celebrate successes along the way? 
• Is childcare options within the community currently meeting the 


needs of the workforce? 
• How is the business community involved in the communication 


and advocacy of early care and education? How is awareness 
related to long term capacity and sustainability  


 


Thank you to the Maine Department of Education’s Early Learning Team, specifically the First10 School 
and Communities initiative and KVCAP/Educare Central Maine for technical assistance in development 


of the consideration for planning portion of this document. 


 






